
 

MINUTES 
 Legislative Commission on Affordable Health Care 

Plans for Small Businesses and Families 
 January 8, 2008 
 

 
Legislative 

Services Agency 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Senator Jack Hatch, Co-chairperson 
Senator Joe Bolkcom 
Senator Amanda Ragan 
Mr. John Aschenbrenner 
Dr. David Carlyle 
Dr. Steven Fuller 
Ms. Amy DeBruin 
Ms. Barb Kniff 
Dr. Timothy Kresowik 
Ms. Julie Kuhle 
Ms. Jan Laue 
Ms. Patsy Shors 
Mr. Joe Teeling 
Ms. Sharon Treinen (via telephone) 
 

Representative Ro Foege, Co-chairperson 
Representative Clarence Hoffman 
Representative David Jacoby 
Representative Mark Smith 
Representative Linda Upmeyer 
 
Ex Officio members: 
Mr. Kevin Concannon, Director, Department of 
   Human Services 
Mr. John McCalley, Director, Department of 
   Elder Affairs 
Mr. Tom Newton, Director of Public Health 
Ms. Susan Voss, Commissioner of Insurance 

 
 
 
 I. Procedural Business 

II. Discussion and Approval of Commission Report 
III. Closing Remarks 
IV. Written Comments submitted in Response to 

Commission Report 
V. Materials Filed With the Legislative Services Agency 

 
 

 

MEETING 
IN 
BRIEF 
 

...................  
 
Organizational staffing provided 
by:  Ann Ver Heul, Legal Counsel, 
(515) 281-3837 
 
 
Minutes prepared by:  Patty 
Funaro, Senior Legal Counsel, 
(515) 281-3040 



 

Legislative Commission on Affordable Health Care Plans for Small 
Businesses and Families 

 

Page 2  January 8, 2008 

I. Procedural Business 
Call to Order and Adjournment.  Co-chairperson Foege called the ninth meeting of the 
Legislative Commission on Affordable Health Care Plans for Small Businesses and Families to 
order at 9:05 a.m. on January 8, 2008, in Room 103, State Capitol, Des Moines, Iowa.  The 
meeting was adjourned at 10:34 a.m.   

II. Discussion and Approval of Commission Report 
Co-chairperson Hatch presented the draft final report of the Commission and moved approval of 
the draft final report.  Representative Smith seconded the motion.  Co-chairperson Hatch provided 
an overview of the draft final report.  Representative Hoffman asked for clarification as to what the 
Commission was voting on.  Representative Hoffman expressed concern that the members of the 
Commission had very little time to review the draft final report prior to voting on it.  Co-chairperson 
Hatch noted that the draft final report does not include a draft of legislation, but will merely be 
submitted to the General Assembly for its review.  The workgroup reports are included as 
attachments and only provided guidance in developing the draft final report.  The draft final report 
does not include specifics. 
Representative Upmeyer expressed her thanks for the open process used during the work of the 
Commission.  She expressed her concern about having so little time to review the draft final report.  
Representative Upmeyer asked how fully funding the Medical Assistance (Medicaid) Program is 
defined, whether the recommendations of the insurance commissioner regarding reform are 
included, how the initiatives will be financed, and how will private businesses be incentivized to be 
involved? 
Co-chairperson Hatch responded that fully funding the medical assistance program is an unknown 
until decisions are made at the federal level regarding the State Children's Health Insurance 
Program (SCHIP) and until modeling is completed.  The report merely provides a road map and is 
a work in progress.  Co-chairperson Hatch mentioned that he received a letter from the Iowa 
Hospital Association noting its concerns about the work of the Commission.   
Dr. Kresowik stated that he would be voting "no" on the report.  He said that there was nothing 
specific in the report that he could identify, but that he felt the Commission had failed in its mission 
to try to achieve affordable health care and access for Iowans, especially for populations such as 
the pre-Medicare adults and individuals with chronic conditions.  He had hoped there would have 
been more time to flesh out the details and define the action steps.  Co-chairperson Foege 
responded that the Commission is willing to continue to work on these details.   
Mr. Aschenbrenner stated that he thought the Commission had come a long way.  The 
Commission developed a vision and shared concerns.  Specifying too many or too few details is 
always problematic depending on individual perspectives.  There was not sufficient time to develop 
all of the specifics, but the Commission has provided a framework to be taken to the next step.  Mr. 
Aschenbrenner did express frustration about not having a clear understanding about which 
information would be included in the report, and that he felt that some inappropriate information 



Legislative Commission on Affordable Health Care Plans for Small 
Businesses and Families  

 

January 8, 2008   Page 3 

would be included in the workgroup reports.  Co-chairperson Hatch clarified that the workgroup 
reports are included only as appendices to the report.   
Ms. Shors echoed the remarks of Mr. Aschenbrenner and stated that she always believed that the 
Commission's work is just an initial step.  She stated, with regard to the workgroup reports, that 
even though not all members were involved in all of the areas, those with expertise were involved 
and had done their best.   
Ms. Kuhle stated that the focus now is on going forward and that the Commission has provided a 
structure for this.   
Ms. Laue noted that the issue of health care is so huge and integrates so many pieces and ideas, 
that she thought the Commission had come a long way in reaching its goal of providing a 
foundation, even if the General Assembly decides not to follow everything in the report to the letter.  
Ms. Laue expressed concern that even though the framework proposed is pointing the General 
Assembly in the right direction, she would still like to have a single-payer system.  She expressed 
her support for the report.    
Ms. Treinen noted that the Commission worked in a bipartisan fashion and received a large 
amount of information in a very short time.  The report is a good starting point.  The Commission is 
providing the General Assembly with information to consider, and even though everyone might not 
agree on every point, not moving forward would be an error.  The Commission spent a lot of time 
on something that should have been done long ago.  Ms. Treinan expressed that she had enjoyed 
working with all of the Commission members.   
Dr. Carlyle stated that he learned that the problem is even deeper and greater than he  originally 
thought.  In addition to those who do not have health insurance, many of those who do have 
coverage are getting fewer and fewer benefits due to increases in the cost of coverage.  Iowa has 
to do the best it can because if the state waits for the federal government, it might be waiting a 
long time.  Chronic conditions and preexisting conditions should be addressed because people 
with these conditions need coverage the most.   
Mr. Russ Sporer stated that the Commission did good work and that he did not want to be an 
obstructionist but would like a means to express a minority view.  Co-chairperson Hatch responded 
that minority views would not be included in the draft final report, but could be submitted for 
inclusion in the minutes.  Co-chairperson Hatch also noted that the co-chairpersons are seeking 
the approval of legislative leadership to continue the Commission through the fiscal year to allow 
the Commission to have input during the Legislative Session.   
Senator Bolkcom noted that $2 trillion is spent annually on health care.  The Commission deserves 
credit for talking about a number of issues including the medical home, chronic disease 
management, prevention and wellness, and requiring insurance.  He noted a great concern with 
cost containment.  Senator Bolkcom thanked everyone involved, including Mr. Bruce Feustel of the 
National Conference of State Legislatures for his assistance in facilitating the meetings of the 
Commission.   
Representative Jacoby noted that the Commission was aiming high at the beginning and that even 
though the end result is not quite complete, the work of the Commission is an impressive first run.  



 

Legislative Commission on Affordable Health Care Plans for Small 
Businesses and Families 

 

Page 4  January 8, 2008 

He stated that the Commission is on the first rung of the ladder and that he had not realized just 
how tall the ladder is.  Representative Jacoby noted that even by starting with covering children up 
to five years old, significant changes can be made.   
Representative Hoffman voiced his appreciation for the process and his confidence in the way the 
Commission worked.  Bold moves are needed, as well as caution in moving forward, considering 
changes that might come with the national elections.  One key is funding the Medicaid program 
sufficiently to address cost-shifting.  He expressed the need to do what is right for the consumer as 
the work moves forward.   
Mr. Teeling noted that he was a bit frustrated due to the short time frame for such a large project, 
but the report is a great first step.  With regard to the exchange proposed in the report, Mr. Teeling 
asked if the exchange would be in the business of selling insurance.  Co-chairperson Hatch 
responded that, like the state role in the hawk-i Program, the exchange would merely act as a 
broker.  Mr. Teeling also expressed concern about increasing bureaucracy.  Co-chairperson Hatch 
responded that going forward will require cooperation from both the public and private sectors.  
With regard to the report, Co-chairperson Hatch noted that the writers' group tried to find 
consensus on the broad concepts rather than providing detail.  The workgroup reports act as a 
reference for more detail.  Mr. Teeling asked if the proposal by the insurance commissioner 
regarding a consumer advocate conflicts with what the report proposes.  Commissioner Voss 
responded that although the proposals are different they are not in conflict.   
Representative Upmeyer noted that many of the members had not reviewed the reports of the 
other workgroups until they were shared for the first time at the December meeting.  She 
expressed concern that people would hold the Commission members accountable for information 
included in the draft final report, even if they might not support everything in the report.  Co-
chairperson Hatch responded that there is no intention to draft legislation sponsored by the 
Commission.  The General Assembly can move forward as it chooses.  The report is broad enough 
that any individual legislator or group of legislators can move forward on what they want and there 
is no attempt to identify the report as legislation that is supported by the Commission as a whole.  
Co-chairperson Hatch asked that the Commission consider this a broad report.  Individual 
commissioners might not be able to support everything in the report but can support the broad 
concepts of the report.  The General Assembly will still look to the individual commissioners to 
make decisions about how to move forward and the Commission will continue to be a resource for 
the General Assembly. 
Dr. Kresowik asked that the report be viewed as more of a progress report than a final report.  Dr. 
Kresowik moved that the word "final" be stricken so that the written work product of the 
Commission is just a report.  Co-chairperson Hatch commented that this will just reinforce that the 
Commission will continue to meet and have input.  Dr. Kresowik added that his rationale is to make 
clear that the Commission's work is merely baby steps and that nothing has been finalized.  
The motion was approved on a voice vote. 
Approval of the Report.  Co-chairperson Hatch moved adoption of the report as amended. The 
motion was approved on a vote of 16 yes, 1 no, and 3 pass. 



Legislative Commission on Affordable Health Care Plans for Small 
Businesses and Families  

 

January 8, 2008   Page 5 

III. Closing Remarks 
Co-chairperson Foege noted that states are the laboratories for health care reform, just as they 
were prior to federal enactment of SCHIP.  By working to build relationships, the state is in a good 
position to move forward.  The process does not end today.  Co-chairperson Foege thanked the 
commissioners for being so faithful in their attendance, being so hard working, and participating in 
such a meaningful way.  He noted that government is run by those who show up and it is not a 
spectator sport.  
Co-chairperson Foege thanked Mr. Feustel for his hard work in facilitating the Commission's work 
and for encouraging everyone to participate.  He also thanked Co-chairperson Hatch for acting as 
co-chairperson and for his energy and hard work, and the staff and the members of the advisory 
group for all of their hard work.  Co-chairperson Hatch echoed Co-chairperson Foege's comments 
thanking everyone for their participation and hard work. 

IV. Written Comments Submitted in Response to Commission Report 

A. Mr. Jay Christensen, designee of the Iowa Hospital Association to the Commission, 
submitted written comments in a letter dated January 3, 2008, prior to the release of the 
Commission report.  The letter is Attachment I of these minutes. 

B. Ms. DeBruin, designee of the Iowa Association of Business and Industry to the Commission, 
submitted comments in a letter dated January 17, 2008.  The letter is Attachment II of these 
minutes. 

C. Mr. Teeling, designee of the Iowa Health Underwriters Association to the Commission, and 
Mr. Sporer, designee of the Independent Insurance Agents of Iowa to the Commission, submitted 
comments in a letter dated January 24, 2008.  The letter is Attachment III of these minutes. 

V. Materials Filed With the Legislative Services Agency 
The following materials listed were distributed at or in connection with the meeting and are filed 
with the Legislative Services Agency.  The materials may be accessed from the <Additional 
Information> link on the Committee's Internet page: 
http://www.legis.state.ia.us/aspx/Committees/Committee.aspx?id=208. 
 

1. "Comments on Report from ABI." 

2. "Charity Care Report" by Dr. Gary Rosenthal. 

3. "Iowa Hospital Association Letter." 



 

Legislative Commission on Affordable Health Care Plans for Small 
Businesses and Families 

 

Page 6  January 8, 2008 

4. "The Future of Iowa's Health and Long-Term Care Workforce" report published by 
IDPH. 

5. "Iowa Health Insurance Status Summary - Non-Elderly Adults Split by Age Groups," 
provided by DHS. 

6. "Iowa Health Insurance Status Summary," provided by DHS. 

7. Health and Human Services, Other Funds, IowaCare. 
 
 
3676IC 


















